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BEFORE THE
| LLI NOI S COMMERCE COMM SSI ON

AVMEREN | LLI NO S COMPANY
d/ b/a Ameren Illinois

DOCKET NO.
12-0001

Rat e MAP-P Moder ni zati on Acti on

)
)
)
)
Plan - Pricing Filing )

Thur sday, June 21, 2012
Springfield, Illinois
Met, pursuant to notice, at 9:00 a.m
BEFORE:

MR. JOHN ALBERS & MR. J. STEPHEN YODER
Adm ni strative Law Judges

APPEARANCES:

MR. MARK WHI TT & MS. REBECCA SEGAL
VWHI TT STURTEVANT

180 North LaSalle

Suite 1822

Chi cago, Illinois 60601

-and-

MR. CHRI STOPHER KENNEDY
WHI TT STURTEVANT, LLP
155 East Broad Street
Col umbus, Ohio 43215

(Appearing on behalf of Ameren
II'1inois Conmpany.)
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CSR #084-001340 & #084-002710
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APPEARANCES: (CONT' D.)

MR. EDWARD FI TZHENRY

MR. MATTHEW TOMC

1901 Chout eau Avenue

P. 0. Box 66149, Mail Code 1310
St. Louis, M ssouri 63166

-and-

MR. CHRI STOPHER FLYNN
180 North LaSalle

Suite 1822

Chi cago, Illinois 60601

(Appearing on behalf of Ameren
II'1inois Company.)

MS. KAREN LUSSON & MS. KATHY YU
100 West Randol ph

11t h Fl oor

Chi cago, Illinois 60601

(Appearing on behalf of the
Peopl e of the State of
Il 1inois.)

MR. ERI C ROBERTSON

LUEDERS, ROBERTSON & KONZEN
P.O. Box 735

1939 Del mar

Granite City, Illinois 62040

-and-
MR. CONRAD R. REDDI CK
1015 Crush Street
VWheaton, Illinois 60189

(Appearing on behalf of Illinois
| ndustrial Energy Consumers.)
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MR. ALAN

( CONT' D.)
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2265 Roswel |l Road

Mari etta,
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(Appearing on behal f
Comer ci al Group.)

MS. CHRI STI E HI CKS
MS. KRI STI N MUNSCH
Washi ngt on

309 West
Suite 800
Chi cago,

I[11inois

60606

(Appearing on behal f

MR. JOHN B. COFFMAN
871 Tuxedo Boul evard

St. Louis

, M ssou

MR. JI'M OLI VERO

527 East
Springfie

Capi t ol

ri 63119

(Appearing on behal f

Id, Illinois 62701

-and-

of

of

of AARP.)

MR. M CHAEL LANNON (via tel econference)

MS. NI COLE LUCKEY

160 North LaSalle Street

Suite C-8
Chi cago,

00
I[11inois

60601

(Appearing on behal f
the Illinois Comerce
Comm ssion.)
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The
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PROCEEDI NGS

JUDGE ALBERS: By the authority vested in ne by
the Illinois Commerce Comm ssion, | now call Docket
No. 12-0001. This docket was initiated by Ameren
Il 1inois Conmpany, d/b/a Ameren Illinois and concerns
its petition for approval of its Rate MAP-P
Moder ni zation Action Plan - Pricing Filing.

May | have the appearances for the
record, please?

MR. FI TZHENRY: Edward Fitzhenry and Matt Tonc
on behalf of Ameren Illinois Conpany.

MR. WHI TT: Mark Whitt, Albert Sturtevant,

Chri stopher Kennedy, and Rebecca Segal also on behalf
of Ameren Illinois Conpany.

MS. LUCKEY: On behalf of staff of the Illinois
Commerce Comm ssion, JimO ivero, M chael Lannon, and
Ni col e Luckey on behalf of the Citizens Utility
Board.

MS. HICKS: Christie Hicks and Kristen Munsch,
309 West Washi ngton, Suite 800, Chicago, Illinois
6060.

MS. YU: On behalf of the Office of the
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I11inois Attorney General, Karen Lusson and Kathy Yu.

MR. COFFMAN: Appearing on behalf of AARP, John
B. Coffman, 871 Tuxedo Boul evard, St. Louis, M ssour
63119.

MR. ROBERTSON: Eric Robertson and Conrad
Reddi ck, Eric Robertson of Lueders, Robertson &
Konzen, P.O. Box 735, 1939 Delmar, Granite City,
I1linois 62040. M. Reddick is at 1015 Crest,
Wheaton, Illinois 60189.

JUDGE ALBERS: Thank you.

Any others wishing to enter an
appear ance?

Let the record show no response.

Any prelimnary matters before we get
to our first witness today?

Okay. Movi ng ahead then, we'll go
ahead and swear in all the witnesses testifying
today, so if they're in the room please stand and
rai se your right hand.

(Wher eupon the witnesses were
sworn by Judge Al bers.)

JUDGE ALBERS: Thank you.
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| believe Ms. Hat hhorn is our first
wi t ness today.

MR. OLI VERO: That's correct, Your Honor.

Good morning, Ms. Hathhorn.
MS. HATHHORN: Good nor ni ng.
DI ANA HATHHORN
called as a witness herein, on behalf of staff of the
Il'1inois Commerce Conmm ssion, having been first duly
sworn on her oath, was exam ned and testified as
foll ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. OLI VERO:

Q Woul d you pl ease state your full name and
spell your last name for the record?

A My name is Diana L. Hathhorn
(H-a-t-h-h-o0-r-n).

Q Ms. Hat hhorn, by whom are you enpl oyed?

A ' m an accountant in the Accounting
Department of the Financial Analysis Division of the
I11inois Commerce Comm ssSion.

Q And, Ms. Hat hhorn, have you prepared

written testimny for purposes of this proceeding?
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A. Yes, | have.

Q And do you have before you a document which

has been marked for identification as |ICC Staff
Exhibit 1.0 entitled "Direct Testinony of Diana
Hat hhorn" whi ch consists of a cover page, table of
contents and 22 pages of narrative testinmony,
Schedul es 1.01 through 1.10 and Attachnment A?

A Yes, | do.

Q And are these true and correct copies of

the direct testinony that you have prepared for this

proceedi ng?
A Yes.

Q And you al so have before you a docunent

whi ch has been marked for identification as |ICC Staff

Exhi bit 10.0 entitled "Rebuttal Testinony of Diana
Hat hhorn" whi ch consists of a cover page, table of
contents, 18 pages of narrative testinmony,
Schedul es 10.01 through 10.07 and Attachment A?

A Yes, | do.

Q And are these true and correct copies of
rebuttal testinony that you have prepared for this

proceedi ng?
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A. Yes.

Q And do you have any corrections to make to

your prepared direct or rebuttal testinmony?

A No, | do not.

Q And is the information contained in |ICC
Staff Exhibits 1.0 and 10.0 and the accompanyi ng
schedul es and attachments true and correct to the
best of your know edge?

A Yes.

Q And if you were asked the same questions
t oday, would the answers contained in your prepared
testinony be the sanme?

A Yes, they woul d.

MR. OLI VERO: Your Honor, at this time and
subject to cross-examnation, | would ask for
adm ssion into evidence Ms. Hathhorn's prepared
direct testimony marked as | CC Staff Exhibit 1.0

i ncluding schedul es and attachments as well as

Ms. Hat hhorn's prepared rebuttal testimony marked as

| CC Staff Exhibit 10.0 along with schedul es and
attachments, and | would note for the record that

t hese documents were filed on the Comm ssion's
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e- Docket system April 12, 2012 and June 5, 2012
respectively.

JUDGE ALBERS: Okay. Thank you.

| s there any cross-exam nation at this

time?

MR. WHI TT: Your Honor, if the conpany does
have cross. We would request actually to go | ast i
t he order among parties who have reserved tinme.

JUDGE ALBERS: Okay. We have IIEC and AG has
al so reserved tinme.

MS. YU: | can go first.

JUDGE ALBERS: Go ahead.

MS. YU: Good nor ni ng.

THE W TNESS: Good mor ni ng.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. YuU:

Q If you'd refer to page 5 of your rebuttal
testinony at lines 105 to 107, you state that the
company's approach regardi ng unanortized ICC is
symmetrical consistent with its |atest Conm ssion
order.

In that are you referring to Docket

n
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No. 11-0282?

A Yes. However, since this testinony, |
received discovery fromthe company that confirmed
that in the |ast order, the deferred asset was not in
rate base, and so that would be a correction to the
symmetrical -- that would be a difference fromthe
symmetrical treatment.

MR. WHI TT: Your Honor, | would object and nove
to strike the response. The witness sponsored
testinony, was asked whether there were any
corrections. She said no. She was asked whether the
answers are true and correct and she said yes.

What | believe |I just heard were
corrections inconsistent with testinony she gave
moment s ago.

MR. OLI VERO: Well, Your Honor, | don't think
she said she made a correction. | think the | ast
poi nt was she said it wasn't symmetrical which
think is just describing how her approach was to
descri bing the Conm ssion's position | guess on the
| ast order.

JUDGE ALBERS: Well, I"mmre interested in
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having the correct information in the order so ||
overrul e the objection.

MS. YU: Thank you

Q If you refer to the next page, page 6 of
your rebuttal testimony beginning at around |line 110,
you di scuss ADIT for the step-up basis metro, and in
t his paragraph here you state that you accept the
company's explanation that an adjustment is
i nappropriate because the net accunul ated deferred
income taxes included in the rate base fromthis
asset purchase is zero, is that correct?

A Yes, that's correct.

Q And woul d you agree that prior to the
transfer of the assets from Union Electric to Ameren,
there was a bal ance of ADIT?

A | believe there should have been, yes.

Q Now, when Union Electric held the assets
t hen, given that there was a bal ance of ADIT, then
that rate base value of those assets would have been
the gross plant m nus accunul ated depreciati on m nus
the ADIT, is that correct?

A. Yes, that's correct.
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Q However, under the conmpany's proposed
treatment including the Account 190 ADIT asset in
rate base, the net rate base value of the assets does

not include any reduction to rate base for the ADIT

that existed at the time of the transfer, is that
correct?
A That's not my understandi ng. | thought

that the other side I'"m sure was in the conpany's
Account 282 which the company clarified in its data
request response DLH 16. 04.

Q And can you refer to staff date request DLH
12.01, and it was two pages. "' m | ooking at
attachment 1, and | have copi es. "1l mark it as AG

Cross Exhibit 1.

A Whi ch response are we tal king about?
Q 12.01.
A | mean, is it an Ameren? | don't

understand. \Whose 12.017
And it doesn't matter because | don't
have nmost of the DRs anyway.
Q Yes, it was Ameren's.

MR. OLI VERO: | think it was an Anmeren
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attachment to the response to DLH 12.01.

MS. YU: There's two pages.

MR. OLI VERO: Of the attachment?

MS. YU: No. There's two pages of the whole DR
with the attachment.

JUDGE ALBERS: Do you have a copy for us?

MS. YU: Yes.

(Whereupon AG Cross Exhibit 1
was marked for identification as
of this date.)

Q So if you |l ook at the attachment to that
response, it's entitled "MET transfer.” On the page,
there's a section that's boxed off, and that shows
the entries to the deferred taxes at the time of the
transaction.

| s that your understandi ng?

A That's my under st anding.

Q And the charges, if you |look at the first
page or at the first four lines in that box, the
charges to Account 190 which is indicated by
1-40- 190- 365, those are offset by the entries

directly below those to Account 411, is that correct?
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A 411 is the credit entry, yes.

Q Yes. And just to clarify, the debit
entries are precisely the same amount as the credit
entries, is that correct?

A Yes.

Q And Account 411 is an incone statement
account for credits through the deferred income tax

expense, is that correct?

A. Yes.
MS. YU: Okay. Now, | have two nore cross
exhibits, well, I'd |like to nove two nore cross

exhibits into the record.
| have no nore cross exhibits at this

time.

MR. OLI VERO: Let nme ask for clarification, was
t hat Cross Exhibit 17

MS. YU So | will have a total of three cross
exhi bits.

JUDGE ALBERS: Okay. Hand t hem out and we'l |l

take a | ook at them
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(Wher eupon AG Cross Exhibits 2
and 3 were marked for
identification as of this date.)
MS. YU: So what | just handed out was
Ms. Hat hhorn's response to AG data request 1.1 and
1.2.
JUDGE ALBERS: The DR that refers to AG 1.2 has
been stamped and marked as Cross Exhibit 2.
MS. YU: At this time, 1'd like to nove AG
Cross Exhibits 1, 2 and 3 into the record.
JUDGE ALBERS: Has staff and Ameren had a
chance to | ook at those?
MR. WHI TT: No obj ections.
JUDGE ALBERS: Does staff have any objections?
MR. OLI VERO: No obj ections.

JUDGE ALBERS: AG Cross Exhibits 1, 2 and 3 are

adm tted.
(Wher eupon AG Cross Exhibits 1,
2 and 3 were admtted into
evidence at this time.)
MR. JENKI NS: Excuse nme, Your Honor. I f 1

could enter my appearance please. Alan Jenkins for
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The Conmmercial Group, 2265 Roswell Road, Marietta,
Geor gi a.

JUDGE ALBERS: And does II1EC still have
guestions for Ms. Hathhorn?

MR. ROBERTSON: Just have a couple, Your Honor.
It won't take ten m nutes but yes.

Good morning, Ms. Hathhorn.

THE W TNESS: Good nmor ni ng.

MR. ROBERTSON: My name is Eric Robertson. I
represent the Illinois Industrial Energy Consumers.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. ROBERTSON:

Q |'d like to refer you to page 17 of your
rebuttal testinony, Staff Exhibit 10.0.

A ' m there.

Q Al'l right. In particular, | was |ooking at
your recomendati on regardi ng Schedul es FRA-1 and
FRA-1 REC at |ines 356 and 357 and the | anguage that
follows at 358 to 364.

Is it your intention -- is your
recommendati on intended to be consistent with what

the Comm ssion ordered in the Commnweal th Edi son
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case, Docket 11-07217
A Yes.
MR. ROBERTSON: Thank you
JUDGE ALBERS: M. Whitt?

MR. WHI TT: Yes. Thank you, Your Honor.

Good norning, Ms. Hathhorn. ' m Mar k
VWhitt. "' m one of the conpany's |awyer and | will be
your interrogator for the day. It's only marginally

worse than being at the dentist.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. WHI TT:

Q Let me start by asking some follow-up on
the testimony di scussed at page 6 of your direct
testinmony regarding the Metro-East step-up basis.

A | think you mean rebuttal

Q My apol ogies; your rebuttal

And if |I'm understanding this issue
correctly, it arises fromthe transfer of property
from CIPS to Union Electric in 2003 or so or it's the
ot her way around actually, Union Electric to CIPS?

A Yes, that's correct.

Q And you were a witness in the origina
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underlying proceedi ng, were you not?

A | can't really recall sitting here right
now.

Q If I were to show you a copy of the
Comm ssion's order in that proceedi ng, would that
refresh your recollection?

A Probabl y.

MR. WHI TT: May | approach?

JUDGE ALBERS: Yes.

What was the docket nunber on that.

MR. VWHI TT: It's 03-0657.

JUDGE ALBERS: Thank you.

Q BY MR. WHI TT: Ms. Hat hhorn, | have a copy
here of the order in Docket 03-0657 and referring to
page 2 of the order in the second paragraph lists a
number of witnesses for the Comm ssion staff, and it
lists Ms. Diana Hathhorn, an accountant in the
Accounting Departnment of the Financial Analysis
Division and a certified public accountant sponsored
Staff Exhibit 2.0, is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Does that refresh your recollection of
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whet her you were a witness in this proceeding?

A Yes.

MR. VWHI TT: May | approach again, Your Honor?

JUDGE ALBERS: Yes.

MR. WHITT: And | apol ogize for not having
copi es. "1l just show the bench what |I'm about to
show the witness, accounting entries filed in Docket
03-0657. | was not going to mark those as an exhibit
or move for their adm ssion into the record because
it's a part of a record in another Comm ssion
proceedi ng, but for the bench's convenience, |'m
happy to make copies for your files.

JUDGE ALBERS: It would be handy if we had
t hat .

MR. WHITT: WII do.

Q BY MR. WHI TT: Ms. Hat hhorn, let me show
you a docunent dated June 23, 2005, and it's a cover
| etter and various schedul es which purport to be
accounting entries filed in Docket 03-0657.

On the first page of the accounting
entries, | would direct your attention, | know that

the record is not going to show me pointing but there
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is an entry for Account 190, accunul ated deferred
income taxes, and it lists a credit of $17,664, 689,
is that correct?

A Yes, that's correct.

Q And if we go further down the schedul e,
there is an entry under Account 282 for accumul ated
deferred incone taxes, other property, reflecting a
debit entry of $17,664,689, is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Ms. Hat hhorn, I'd now like to talk to you
about FIN 48, and you address this issue beginning at
page 8 of your rebuttal testinmony.

Now, it's correct, is it not, that the
FIN 48 bal ance represents nmonies that the conpany has
not paid to the IRS due to certain tax deductions it
t ook, correct?

A Yes.

Q And the company and the experts it hired to
analyze tax issues have concluded it's nore likely
t han not that the IRS is going to disallowthe
deductions represented by the FIN 48 anounts,

correct?
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A Yes.

Q And is it your understanding that the nore
i kely than not standard nmeans there is a greater
than 50 percent |ikelihood that those deductions wil
be disall owed?

A | have never seen that definition but that
woul d make sense.

Q Okay. So if things turn out the way the
company and its experts believe they will turn out
with respect to whether the deductions are allowed or
not, the FIN 48 amounts will be paid or it's nore
i kely than not those amounts will be paid to the
government, correct?

A The experts have concluded that it's nmore
i kely than not.

However, the issues could be settled
with the RS at amounts that are substantially
different fromthose original balances, so it's not
necessarily more |likely than not that the entire
bal ance won't be paid or will be paid.

Q And for the reasons you just expl ained,

that's why we call these tax revisions uncertain,
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correct?

A Yes.

Q They're uncertain in ternms of what the
ultimate liability is going to be correct?

A Yes.

Q The tim ng of when those taxes may be paid

is uncertain as well, is it not?
A Well, the question is if they're ever going
to be paid. It's not just timng and amount. It's

also if ever.

Q But if we accept it's nore |likely than not
t hat the amounts will be paid, even if we accept
that, we're not sure exactly when?

A We don't know when. We don't know how
much.

Q Okay. And if the FIN 48 amounts or sonme
portion thereof are paid to the governnment, then

Ameren cannot use that nmoney to invest in rate base,

correct?
A Well, they would have had the noney from
the time of the presentation until the time of the

ruling, and then they would have to pay the taxes
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with interest.

Q And once the taxes with interest are paid,
obviously that money is not available to invest in
rate base, correct?

A Ri ght, but that's usually a substanti al
period of time after the original tax return is
filed.

Q Well, is the answer to my question correct
t hough or is the answer yes, that once the noney is
paid, regardless of when it's paid, when it's paid to
t he government, it's not available to the conpany any
| onger, correct?

A It wouldn't be avail abl e anynore.

Q Yet the rate base deduction for the FIN 48
amounts would remain part of Ameren's rate structure
even though these amounts have been paid, correct?

A ' m not sure that's true in the context of
this fornmula rate where the conpany will be comng in
every year and the I RS determ nations could be
reflected in Ameren's ADIT.

Q The point being though that there won't be

a change to ADIT or the formula rate until there is
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anot her formula rate proceeding, correct?

A Ri ght, and those are annual.

Q And it's only if the conpany and its tax
experts are wrong that Ameren will keep the FIN 48
ampunts, correct?

A That's correct.

Q Now, if Ameren had not taken the tax
deductions that represent the FIN 48 anounts, it
woul d have paid nore in income taxes, correct?

A Yes.

Q And that increased tax expense would be
recovered in rates, would it not?

A Well, my understandi ng of Ameren is that
woul d be reflected through the deferred taxes, but
their income taxes on the income statenment side would
be the same because they use a statutory rate and so
t hat deduction doesn't conme into play there.

Q Well, isn't it true that the net effect of
Ameren taking these deductions that resulted in
uncertain tax positions is that it |owered the
conmpany's tax expense, at |east temporarily?

A. Yes, it woul d.
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Q In effect did.

A | could agree that it changed the deferred
t axes, but the ampunt that they paid to the IRS is
not what's in the revenue requirement on the expense
side, so it didn't affect that.

Q Okay. Can we agree that |owering or taking
steps to |l ower current taxes is a benefit to utility
rat epayers?

A | woul d agree.

Q Now, at the bottom of page 10 on to page 11
of your rebuttal testimny, you cite some FERC
gui dance on FI N 48.

Do you see that?

A Yes, | do.

MR. VWHI TT: And may | approach, Your Honors?

JUDGE ALBERS: Yes, you may.

(Whereupon AlIC Cross Exhibit 2
was marked for identification as
of this date.)

Q BY MR. WHI TT: Ms. Hat hhorn, |'ve handed
you a copy of what we've marked as Al C Cross Exhibit

No. 2.
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Can you identify this document as the
FERC gui dance that you have quoted in your testinmony?

A Yes.

Q And it's correct, is it not, that the FERC
gui dance represented in AIC Cross Exhibit 2 applies
to financial reporting to FERC under the Uniform
System of Accounts?

A Yes.

Q And the FERC gui dance does not affect rates

set or doesn't govern rates that FERC establishes,

correct?
A It's not automatic. The conpany woul d
still have to present evidence to take a different

position than this guidance. This guidance doesn't
automatically change rates.

Q Okay. W th respect to FERC, and certainly,
FERC is not, through its guidance, purporting to
dictate to state comm ssions how they should treat
FIN 48 bal ances for ratemaking purposes, correct?

A That's correct.

Q And page 5 of AIC Cross Exhibit 2,

actually, starting at page 4 and going into page 5,
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di scusses interest in penalties, is that correct?

A Yes.

Q And is it your understanding that FERC
requires jurisdictional entities to accrue interest
in penalties on their uncertain tax positions?

A | believe that's correct.

Q And to the extent an entity is accruing
interest on penalties on FIN 48 ampunts, the FIN 48
amounts are not available to the utility

interest-free, correct?

A Yes.

Q In other words, the FIN 48 amounts, in
fact, are not cost-free to the utility, correct?

A The interest m ght occur in a different

peri od than the ratemaki ng period being analyzed, but
in totality, if there's interest, that's a cost, but
if we're | ooking here by year, the interest m ght not

be synching up with the tax year or the ratemaking

year.
Q Well, the interest is applicable to the

date the utility filed its tax return, correct?
A Yes.
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Q And the utility has to begin accruing for
interest in penalties as soon as a determnation is
made that the amounts satisfied the standards for
classification under FIN 48, correct?

A Yes.

Q Now, woul d you agree with me that ADIT, or
accumul ated deferred income taxes, essentially
represents timng differences between the anmount of
t ax expense collected in rates and when that tax
expense i s paid?

And perhaps if that's oversimplified
l et me know, but I'mjust trying to establish a
general principle.

A Ri ght . It's often just called the
book-to-tax difference.

Q Okay. And | would assume then that because
this is a book-to-tax timng difference that the
utility actually knows with respect to ADI T how | ong
it will have the use of funds before those funds have
to be paid in taxes, correct?

A Yes.

Q And it also knows the amount it will have
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the use of until it needs to be paid to the
government, correct?

A Yes.

Q Wth respect to FIN 48 amounts, we talked
earlier about the uncertainty surrounding those
ampunts, correct?

A Yes.

Q And the utility, until the I RS makes a
ruling, doesn't know how long it may have the use of
funds, correct?

A Correct.

Q It doesn't know whet her the deduction will
be compl etely disallowed, partially allowed, or
allowed in full, correct?

A Yes.

Q And during this period of uncertainty, the
utility is also including interest in penalties on
t hose FIN 48 amounts, correct?

A Yes.

Q Whereas with ADIT, those funds are
available to the utility cost-free; hence, the reason

they're deducted fromrate base, correct?
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A Correct.

Q Now, on page 198 of your rebutta
testinmony, |'msorry, line 198 -- if it was page 198,
we would file a motion to strike you physically --
you say that under the conpany's proposal, if the IRS
does not disallow the tax deduction associated with
the FIN 48 reserve, customers would not receive the
benefit of deferred tax credits until the first rate
case after tax returns are no |onger subject to IRS
review and adj ust ment.

Did | read that correctly?

A Yes, you did.

Q Now, if the IRS does disallowthe
deductions as all the experts expect, Anmeren Illinois
woul d not receive the benefit of the use of
nonshar ehol der funds, correct?

A Coul d you pl ease repeat that question?

MR. WHITT: Could you read it?

(The reporter read back the | ast
guestion.)

Q And et me qualify that by saying at that

point in time when the deduction is disallowed and
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goi ng forward.

A So could you just walk through the

assumption again? |'mjust not follow ng what you're
aski ng.
Q Sure. And let's go back. W'IIl circle

back to your testinmony.

You tal k about the conpany's proposal,
and you say that if the I RS does not disallow the tax
deductions, customers would not receive the benefit
of the deferred tax credits.

And my question really goes to the
opposite side of the same coin if you will; that if
the I RS does disallow the deductions, then Ameren
woul d not receive the benefit of the use of
nonshar ehol der funds?

MR. OLI VERO: | guess, can | just clarify
because you keep switching | guess.

In her example, she had customers, and
you're switching it to Ameren. s that a fair
statement ?

MR. VWHI TT: Yes.

MR. OLI VERO: You're switching that part of it?
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MR. WHI TT: Yes.

MR. OLI VERO: Okay.

THE W TNESS: So the RS is allowi ng the
deduction in your exanple?

MR. WHITT: They're not allowing it.

THE W TNESS: They're not allowing it?

MR. WHI TT: Right.

THE W TNESS: And are we assum ng the conpany
proposal of including it?

MR. WHI TT: Let me try it alittle differently.

Q | think what you're saying is that if the
| RS doesn't disallow the deduction, then the conpany
basically gets a windfall because they have FIN 48
amounts on the bal ance sheet that they thought they
were going to have to pay and they didn't, and
customers are on the |osing end of that because, in
hi ndsi ght, we can | ook back and say, well, that
shoul d have been a rate base deduction.

| don't want to m scharacterize what

you're saying.

A No, that's a good general description.

Q Okay. But the other side of that is that
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if the IRS does, in fact, disallow the deductions as
t he experts believe is going to happen, then once the
deducti ons are disall owed, Ameren doesn't have the

use of nonshar ehol der funds?

A It doesn't have the use of that capital
Q What | said was correct?
A Yes.

Q Okay. Now, at |ine 202 of your rebuttal,
you say the company has proposed no mechanism to
protect customers fromthe increased rates while
awaiting the RS to conmplete its review of the issue
if the FIN 48 reserve is proved to be unnecessary,
and my question here is would such a mechani sm cause
you to reconsider your reconmmendation?

A | woul d have given the mechani sm t hought,
and it's possible. | don't know.

Q Okay. And in your testinony, you haven't
proposed a mechanism that would protect Ameren from
what could effectively be a double whammy, very
precise legal term meaning a situation where there's
a rate base deduction for FIN 48 amounts and then a

subsequent | oss of the use of capital associated with
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t hose amounts.
Do you follow that?

A | did not propose a mechani sm.

Q Can you think of any reason why Ameren
shoul d continue to take aggressive tax positions
under your proposed recommendati on concerning FIN 48?

MR. OLI VERO: Your Honor, | guess I'm going to
object as calling for speculation on her part as to
what Ameren may or may not do.

MR. WHI TT: She's made a recommendati on, and
|'"mjust trying to explore whether the wi tness has
given consideration to the consequences of that
recommendation to the extent she can.

JUDGE ALBERS: Under st ood. 11 allow the
gquesti on.

THE W TNESS: My understanding is Ameren files
t axes as part of the consolidated group, and so |
i magine it has a |lot of competing interest in
determ ning tax positions and how the consoli dated
group should file taxes, and Illinois ratemaking is
just one part of it, and so | couldn't really say for

sure that this one decision is going to negatively
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affect their consolidated tax expense.

Q But it certainly will affect Ameren
I11inois' tax expense, will it not, and its
rat epayers?

A | don't know that.

Q Woul d you expect that to be the case, that
to the extent we're in an Ameren Illinois rate case
and maki ng recommendations with respect to Illinois
rates that those recommendati ons have consequences to
t he conpany and its custoners?

A | wouldn't expect it to be a direct
one-for-one result because Anmeren Illinois doesn't
file taxes by itself.

Q | want to ask you a few questions that dea
with the issue of using the average rate base for
reconciliations, and before | approach, | would just
ask if you happen to have a copy of 16-108.5(c) and
(d) with you?

A No, | do not.

MR. WHITT: Well, | do, and | would ask the
Comm ssion to approach.

JUDGE ALBERS: Yes.
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MR. WHITT: We can refer to this document as
Al C Cross Exhibit 3 although I will not be nmoving for
its adm ssion. For the parties and the bench, it's
an excerpt of the fornmula rate statute.

(Whereupon AlIC Cross Exhibit 3
was marked for identification as
of this date.)

Q Ms. Hat hhorn, |'ve handed you what we've
mar ked as Al C Cross Exhibit 3. It's an excerpt of
516-108. 5(c) and Subsection (d) is in here as well.

"1l ask you to turn to subsection (d)
which is the fourth to the |ast page of the docunment.
| apol ogi ze. | don't have page nunbers on it?

A ' m there.

Q Okay. And Subsection (d) addresses an

annual filing due on or about May 1 of each year,
correct?

A Yes.

Q And this filing has been referred variously

in this proceeding as a reconciliation or an update
proceedi ng.

Woul d that term nol ogy be famliar to

257



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

you?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And Subsection (d) as part of the
filing requires the utility to file updated cost
i nputs to the performance-based rate for the
applicable rate year and the correspondi ng new
char ges.

" mreading fromthe end of the first
sentence of Subsection (d).

A | see that, yes.

Q And can we agree that the updated cost
i nputs referred to in Subsection (d), that those
updated cost inputs really serve -- well, first of
all, the updated cost inputs refers to FERC Form 1,
does it not?

A Yes.

Q And in the May proceedi ngs, the FERC Form 1
serves essentially two purposes, does it not, one to
update for new rates and the other purpose is to
reconcile prior year rates, is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q And i n Subsection (d)(1), it says that the
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input to the performance based formula rate for the
applicable rate year shall be based on fina
historical data reflected in the utility's nost
recently filed annual FERC Form 1 plus projected
pl ant additions and correspondi ngly updated
depreci ation reserve and expense for the cal endar
year in which the inputs are filed, correct?

A Yes.

Q And that is referring to rates that will be
set prospectively, correct?

A Yes.

Q For exanple, in May of 2013, Ameren
Il Tinois will update its formula rate tariff with
actual information fromits 2012 FERC Form 1 pl us
projected plant additions and depreciation, correct?

A Yes.

Q And that information will be used to set
rates that go in effect in January 2014, correct?

A Yes.

Q And you're not disputing that those
proj ected plant additions should be averaged in

cal culating rate base for the prospective rates?
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A Correct. That's not ny position.

Q Now, if we continue in Subsection (d)(1)
fromwhere | left off, it says the filing shall also
including a reconciliation of the revenue requirenment
that was in effect for the prior year as set by the
cost inputs for the prior rate year with the actual
revenue requirement for the prior rate year as
reflected in the applicable FERC Form 1 that reports
t he actual cost for the prior rate year.

So going back to our May 2013 exanpl e,
for a reconciliation in that filing, the exercise
will be to conmpare the revenue requirement based on
final 2012 FERC Form 1 data to the revenue
requi rement that was actually in effect in 2012,
correct?

A Yes.

Q And the actual cost for the prior rate year
will show up in FERC Form 1 as the year end bal ance
of rate base, correct?

A The December 31, 2012 rate base wil
reflect the cunul ative effect of all the charges for

2012.
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Q Right. And all of the year end rate base
as of the end of 2012, the plant in service that
represents that rate base will, in fact, be in
service and be used and useful by the time rates are
established for 2014, correct?

A Yes.

Q Could we agree that in the May proceeding,
| think we' ve established that there are really two
pur poses. One is a reconciliation, and the other is
to set rates prospectively. | think we agreed on
that, didn't we?

A Yes.

Q And can we agree that the exercise of
setting fornula rates prospectively is anal ogous to
how rates are set in the future test year insofar as
we are making projections about future periods?

A | don't know about that. | mean, a future
test year has everything projected way out and the
formula rate as the conmpany represents is just plant
and accumul ated depreciation, and other parties have,
i ncluding nyself, have ADIT, but future test year,

everything is projected way out in the future.
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Q Okay. But if we focus on a rate base, we
will be in a proceeding in May of 2013, the
proceeding will start in May 2013 to set rates that
would go in effect in January of 2014, correct?

A Yes.

Q And i nsofar as we are going to use an
average rate base to set rates prospectively, that's
what we do in future test years as well, correct?

A Average rate bases are used in future test
years.

Q Okay. Now, for the reconciliation portion
of the proceeding, we're actually | ooking backward in
time, are we not?

A Yes.

Q And in the reconciliation, we're not
setting rates, correct? W're reconciling the
previous rates?

A We're reconciling them but the results of
that reconciliation gets included in the rates that
go forward.

Q But it's not establishing a rate per se.

It's | ooking at what we thought would happen versus
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what did happen and maki ng an adj ustment goi ng
forward, correct?

A Yes, and that adjustment going forward is
included in rates. Otherwi se, there would be no
poi nt .

Q But, again, for the reconciliation portion
of the proceeding, we're not establishing a rate.
We're doing a reconciliation, the results of which
woul d then be applicable to the updated cost inputs
that go in effect the subsequent year, correct?

A | guess ny trouble is that there really is
only one proceeding. You know, even though we talk
about two parts of it, the result of an analysis of
the reconciliation goes into -- there's only one rate
that's put into effect in this proceeding, so the
adjustnment is going to result in a change in rates

even though it's combined with other amounts.

Q But there are two steps to the process,
correct?
A There's two steps but there's not two

proceedi ngs, so the reconciliation is going to result

in a change in rates.
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Q And to use the words of the statute, for
the reconciliation portion of the proceeding, we're
| ooki ng backward to see, quote, "what the revenue
requi rement woul d have been had the actual cost

information for the applicable rate year been

avail able at the filing date,” is that right?
A If you point me where you're reading from
pl ease.
Q It's | believe C6.
A And could you pl ease repeat the question?
Q Sure.

The purpose of the reconciliation is
to determ ne what the revenue requirement would have
been had the actual cost information for the
applicable cal endar year been available at the filing
dat e.

A Yes.

Q And is it your opinion that to the extent
the reconciliation results in an over- or
underrecovery that the same interest rate ought to be
used?

A That's my understandi ng of the ComEd
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deci sion on the same issue.

Q And a nunmber of your reconmendati ons are
prem sed on the notion that there should be
consi stency between the ComEd and Ameren deci sions?

A That's correct.

MR. WHI TT: | have no further questions.

JUDGE ALBERS: Thank you.

Do you have any redirect?

MR. OLIVERO: We will, Your Honor. Can we have
a short break?

JUDGE ALBERS: Yes.

(Recess taken.)

JUDGE ALBERS: Back on the record.

MR. OLI VERO: Your Honor, we have very brief
redirect.

JUDGE ALBERS: First, M. Whitt, did you want
to move for adm ssion of Ameren Cross Exhibit 2?

MR. WHI TT: Yes, | would, Your Honor. For the
record, those are the accounting entries in |ICC
Docket No. 03-0657.

JUDGE ALBERS: | thought No. 2 was the FERC

gui dance.
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MR. WHI TT: Oh, I'm sorry.

JUDGE ALBERS: Did you want to --

MR. WHITT: Yeah, | do want to -- well,
actually, the FERC guidance | believe is a CUB
exhibit so I don't think we necessarily need to nove
for its adm ssion.

MR. OLI VERO: Okay. Well, | nmean, | was just
going to use this to refer her to.

MR. WHITT: Well, why don't we go ahead. The
FERC gui dance would be AIC Cross Exhibit 2, and we
woul d move for its adm ssion. The accounting entries
were - -

JUDGE ALBERS: You do want to nmove for their
adm ssion?

MR. WHI TT: Yes.

JUDGE ALBERS: You've got four now. W
previously didn't identify them

MR. WHI TT: | don't think we had a 1.

JUDGE YODER: Yest erday you did.

JUDGE ALBERS: So with regard to AIC Cross
Exhi bit 2, the FERC gui dance document regarding FIN

48, any objection to that one?
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MR. OLI VERO: No, Your Honor.

JUDGE ALBERS: Okay. Then that one is
adm tted.

(Whereupon AIC Cross Exhibit 2
was admtted into evidence at
this time.)

JUDGE ALBERS: And AIC Cross Exhibit 3, the
excerpts fromthe Act, that was not offered. You
don't intend to offer it for adm ssion? It's just
for reference?

MR. WHI TT: That's correct, Your Honor.

JUDGE ALBERS: Okay. And AIC Cross Exhibit 4,
t he accounting entries from Docket 03-0657, any
objection to admtting that exhibit?

MR. OLI VERO: No, Your Honor.

JUDGE ALBERS: All right. So that one is
admtted as well.

(Wher eupon AIC Cross Exhibit 4

was mar ked for identification as

of this date.)
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(Wher eupon AIC Cross Exhibit 4
was adm tted into evidence at
this time.)

JUDGE ALBERS: All right. Thank you.

Al'l right. M. Oivero, do you have
redirect then?

MR. OLI VERO: | do, Your Honor. Thank you.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. OLI VERO:

Q Ms. Hat hhorn, I'd Iike to direct your
attention to AIC Cross Exhibit 2, the FERC gui dance
docunment .

A Al'l right.

Q You were asked on cross-exam nation whet her
it dictated ratemaking treatnment.

Do you wish to clarify your response
to those Iines of questions?

A Yes. Since this case is using the formula
rate which is based on anmpounts that are reported in
the FERC to the Uniform System of Accounts, the FERC
Uni form System of Accounts is definitely valid in

setting fornmula rate.
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Q Thank you.

And then |I'd also Iike you to please
clarify staff's position regarding the line of cross
when you were asked when average rate base should be
used.

A Staff's position is that for the
prospective rates, year round rate base would be used
for that calculation and the projected plant
additi ons, and that average rate base would be used
to determ ne the reconciliation component.

MR. OLI VERO: | have nothing further, Your
Honor .

JUDGE ALBERS: Any recross by anyone?

MR. WHI TT: Very briefly.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. WHI TT:
Q Ms. Hat hhorn, the FERC gui dance was issued

in May of 2007, correct.

A Yes.
Q And fornmula rates in Illinois, the

| egi sl ation wasn't passed until 2011, correct?
A Yes.
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MR. WHI TT: Not hi ng further.

MR. OLI VERO: Not hi ng further.

JUDGE ALBERS: All right. Any objection then
to the adm ssion of Ms. Hathhorn's exhibits?

MR. WHI TT: No obj ecti on.

JUDGE ALBERS: Then hearing none, Staff
Exhibits 1.0 through 1.10 with Attachment A and 10.0
t hrough 10.07 with Attachment A are admtted as they
are on e-Docket .

(Whereupon Staff Exhibits 1.0
t hrough 1.10 and 10.0 through
10. 07 were admtted into
evidence at this time.)

MS. LUSSON: Judge Al bers, it's ny
under standi ng that three additional AG Cross Exhibits
were admtted and numbered as 1, 2 and 3, and | just
wanted to clarify, yesterday | introduced an exhibit,
AG Cross Exhibit 1, during M. Heintz's cross, so |
think they would be 2, 3 and 4.

JUDGE ALBERS: You're correct. Okay. Yes. As
Ms. Lusson indicated, yesterday AG Cross Exhibit 1

was admtted, so with regard to the three that were

270



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

offered and adm tted today, the one pertaining to

Staff DR DLH 12.01 will be AG Cross Exhibit 2. The

one pertaining to AGDR 1.2 will be AG Cross

Exhi bit 3, and the one pertaining to AGDR 1.1 will

be AG Cross Exhibit 4.
(Wher eupon the previously
identified AG Cross Exhibits 1,
2 and 3 were remarked at this
time as AG Cross Exhibits 2, 3
and 4 respectively, and the
previously admtted AG Cross
Exhibits 1, 2 & 3 should be
designated as AG Cross Exhibits
2, 3 and 4 respectively.)

MR. OLI VERO: Your Honor, we were wondering if
we could have a short break to discuss some aspects
of M. Stafford's cross to see whether or not we
could get some issues resolved.

JUDGE ALBERS: It m ght get cut down you're
t hi nki ng?

MR. OLI VERO: Hopeful | y.

JUDGE ALBERS: Yes. \Why don't we do that then.
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(Recess taken.)
JUDGE ALBERS: Back on the record.
| guess, just so |I'm not curious for
the rest of the norning, have we had any |luck in

reduci ng the anmount of cross for M. Stafford.

MS. LUCKEY: | think we've tried to cut down on
some of it, but we will have some clarifying
guesti ons.

JUDGE ALBERS: Not |ike five or ten m nutes
anynmore?

MS. LUCKEY: Probably more |ike an hour.

JUDGE ALBERS: Okay. M. Stafford you were
sworn in this morning?

MR. STAFFORD: Yes, | was.

JUDGE ALBERS: M. Whitt, are you doing the
i ntroduction?

MR. WHI TT: Yes.

Good morning, M. Stafford.
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RONALD D. STAFFORD
called as a witness herein, on behalf of Ameren
I11inois Conmpany, having been first duly sworn on his
oath, was exam ned and testified as follows:

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. WHI TT:

Q Coul d you please introduce yourself by
stating your full name and enpl oyer and title?

A Yes. My name is Ronald D. Stafford,

Manager of Regul atory Accounting for Ameren Illinois,
(314) 206-0584.

Q M. Stafford, do you have in front of you a
document entitled "Revised Direct Testinony of Ronald
D. Stafford" marked as AIC Exhibit 2.0 Revised
acconpani ed by a document marked Al C Exhibit 2.1,
exhibit to direct testinmny of Ronald D. Stafford,
and Exhibit 2.2 Revised, revised exhibit to the
direct testimny of Ronald D. Stafford, and AIC
Exhi bits 2.3 through 2.67

A Yes, | have those.

Q Do these documents represent your direct

testimony and supporting exhibits filed in this
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proceedi ng?

A Yes, they do.

Q Do you have any corrections to your direct
testi nmony or exhibits?

A No, | do not.

Q Do you also have in front of you a docunent
mar ked as Al C Exhibit 13.0, Rebuttal Testimony of
Ronal d D. Stafford, accompanied by AIC Exhibits 13.1
t hrough 13.5?

A | have those.

Q Do these documents represent your rebutta
testi mony and supporting exhibits filed in this
proceedi ng?

A Yes, they do.

Q Do you have any corrections to your
rebuttal testinmony or exhibits?

A No, | don't.

Q Do you have in front of you a docunent
mar ked Al C Exhibit 23.0 Revised titled "Revised
Surrebuttal Testinony of Ronald D. Stafford"”
acconpani ed by AIC Exhibits 23.1 through 23.27

A. Yes, | have those.
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Q Do these documents represent your
surrebuttal testinony and supporting exhibits filed
in this proceeding?

A Yes, they do.

Q Do you have any corrections to your
surrebuttal testinmony or exhibits?

A No, | do not.

Q If I were to ask you the same questions
t hat appear in the previously identified testinmny
here today, would your answers be the same?

A Yes, they woul d.

MR. WHITT: W th that, Your Honor, | would move
for the adm ssion of the previously identified
exhibits subject to cross-exam nation.

JUDGE ALBERS: Very good.

Who would like to go first with the
Cross-exam nation?

MR. LANNON: Your Honor, if it's all the sanme
with everyone else, 1'd like to go first.

JUDGE ALBERS: Al'l right.

MR. LANNON: Hell o, M. Stafford. How are you?

THE W TNESS: Doi ng fine. Thank you, sir.
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MR. LANNON: My name is M ke Lannon. I
represent the staff of the Illinois Commerce
Comm ssi on.

' m going to have a series of
guestions for you, and then |I believe one of ny
col | eagues in the hearing roomis going to follow up
with a couple of very brief questions.

THE W TNESS: Okay.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. LANNON:

Q Now, first, | can hear you. | assume you
can hear me, is that right?

A | can hear you fine. Thank you

Q Okay. And | can see you and | assune you
can see me, is that right?

A Yes. |'ve got the m crophone on here. Do

you need me to speak | ouder?

Q No, no. You're okay.
A Okay.
Q Now, an issue came up yesterday, and | want

to be perfectly clear on this with the record.

If you can see nme, you can see that
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' m wearing a suit today, is that correct?

A

Q

direct

Exhi bit

JUDGE ALBERS: M. Lannon, when you turn your

| can see that, yes.

Okay. Thank you

Now, |I'd like for you to pul

out your

testinony or revised direct testinmny, Ameren

2.0, and go to page 1, please.

head, we're losing you a little bit on the
m crophone, so just try to be aware of that.
MR. LANNON: "1l try to keep that in m nd,
Your Honor, reposition a little.
Q Are you there at page 1, sir?
A Yes.
Q Okay. | " m | ooki ng down at the last Q and A
on that page, and | believe you state that you're

responsi ble for, among other things, preparation of

regul atory required reports, is that right?

A

Q

preparation of

annual

filing?

Yes,

And woul d you be assisting in the

report

that's correct.

the 2010 Form 21 which is the | CC

and al so required as part

of

the 285
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A | would assist with that, yes.

Q And the same question for the 2010 FERC
Form 1 annual report. Did you assist in the
preparation of that?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And one more general Kkind of
background questi on.

Coul d you define a cal endar year for

me?

A A cal endar year is 2010, 2011

Q Okay. Wuld you agree with me that a
cal endar year runs from January 1st through
December 31st as opposed to some other | ength of
mont hs?

A A cal endar year runs from January 1st
t hrough Decenber 31st.

Q Thank you.

Okay. Do you have before you your

Exhi bit 13.4 which is an attachment to your rebuttal?

A Yes, | do.

Q And could you go to page 7 of 7?

A "' m sorry. Coul d you repeat that, please?
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Q Yes. The | ast page of Exhibit 13.4 is
| abel ed page 7 of 7.

A | have that.

Q Okay. And do you see on that page, page 7
of 7 of Exhibit 13.4, there's one | arge table kind of
broken up into three separate tables. Do you see
t hat ?

A Yes, | do.

Q Okay. In the top table in the m ddle
colum, the mddle colum is |abeled dividends.
Woul d you agree with that?

A Yes.

Q And can you tell me out of all these
di vidends there, and | think there's three years'
worth, are those all cash dividends?

A Yes, they are.

Q So there are no stock dividends or asset
di vidends reflected in that colum on this page 7 of
7 of 13.4, is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Okay. Can you tell me what the USOA stands

for?
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A " m sorry. s that on this page somewhere?

Q No, it's not. It's a common accounti ng
acronym

A USOA, Uniform System of Accounts.

Q Okay. Now, woul d you agree with me that
the USOA identifies retained earnings as accounts

215, 215.1 and 2167

A Subject to check, | would agree with that.
Q Now, let's go back to or let's turn to your
surrebuttal, but we'll come back to 13.4 again to

t hat very same page.
If you'd turn to page 7 of your
surrebuttal, Ameren Exhibit 23.0.

A | have that.

Q Okay. And start on |line 133. | believe
you testified the effects of purchase accounting
adj ustnments are reflected in retained earnings, and
as retained earnings are reduced by dividends, the
effect of those adjustments are removed fromthe
bal ance sheet.

Do you see that? Did | accurately

read that?
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A You did. Thank you.

Q Okay. And are you saying here that there
are no nmore purchase accounting adjustnments reflected
in retained earnings as of December 31, 2008?

A The retained earni ngs at December 31, 2008
do not reflect any additional purchase accounting
adjustnments if that is the question.

Q What is the amount of purchase accounti ng
adj ustnments reflected in retained earnings then as of
Decenber 31, 20087

A Well, as of Decenber 31st, as indicated on
the prior Exhibit 13.4, page 7, which was a document
used to support the calculation of the ratenmaking
retained earnings adjustment to common equity in
Docket 09-0306, the calculation indicated that the
entire amount of purchase accounting net income that
was transferred to retained earnings was paid out in
cash common dividends. Therefore, there was no
remai ni ng bal ance in retained earnings for purchase
accounti ng.

There was a remai ning bal ance in

retained earnings for nonpurchase accounting rel ated
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net incone.

Q Okay. And we're going to take a closer
| ook at 13.477, but why don't you stay right there.

Can you tell me what the amount of

purchase accounting adjustnments are that would be
reflected in retained earnings as of Decenber 31,
20107

A There are no purchase accounti ng
adjustnments reflected -- oh, Decenber 31, 20107

Q Yes, that's right.

(Pause)
A Well, | cannot |ocate the exact bal ance now
in nmy testimony. That amount is over 7 mllion

negative retained earnings at the end of 2010 rel ated
to purchase accounti ng.
Q Fair enough.

Am | correct that the company has
presented ei ght schedules that reflect an adjustnment
removing 80 remai ning construction work in progress,
or CW P, accruing AFUDC from |l ong-term capital
component s?

A ' m not aware of any. | would recomend
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you ask M. Martin that question. |'d defer to him
for a definitive answer.

Q Fair enough.

Okay. Back on page 7 of 7,
Exhi bit 13.4, that same page we were | ooking at
before with the three tables.

A | have that.

Q Okay. Let's | ook at the bottomtable if we
could, and could you just read to me what that first
colum's heading or title is?

A The first columm heading is net income to
conmmon.

Q Okay. That's good, but let's go down one
t abl e. It's dividend adjusted purchase accounting |
think, is that right?

A Ri ght, the last of the three is dividend
adj usted purchase accounting, that's correct.

Q And the very next one to it would be
di vi dend adj usted nonpurchase accounting, correct?

A That's correct.

Q Okay. And then you nentioned in the table

above it net to com is that right?
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A Net income to conmmon.
Q Net income to comon i ncome or conmon
di vi dend?
A That's the anmount of net income recorded in

the income statement that's transferred to comon
equity. Essentially it's recorded in the retained
earni ngs accounts.

Q Now, going back to the bottomtable so to
speak, would you agree with me that for the year
2004, the dividend adjusted purchase accounti ng
amount of 6,551,151 -- do you see that nunber, did |
read that right?

A That's correct.

Q Okay. Was that number cal cul ated as
follows, as 26,551,151 of purchase accounting which
is reflected in the table above in the year "04 in
the mddle of colum, is that right?

A That is correct.

Q Okay. So the dividend adjusted purchase
adj ust ment amount, 6,551,151, is the 26,551, 151 | ess
20 mllion in comon dividends that Ameren paid in

the first quarter '05, is that right?
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A That's correct.
Q Now, could you | ook down at note 3 on that

same page?

A | see that.
Q Okay. And just for the record, 1'll read
t hat note, and you can tell me if | read it right.

It says, first quarter 2005 dividends assigned a
hundred percent to fourth quarter 2004 purchase
accounting income. Remai ni ng 2005 di vi dends
al |l ocated between 2005 PA and non- PA.
Did I read that right?
A Yes.
Q Now, focusing in on the phrase remaining
2005 dividends, did that refer to the 76 mllion
common dividends which is noted in the first table,
m ddl e colum, for '"05 less 20 mllion comon
di vi dends that Ameren paid out first quarter '05?
Did you follow that or should I break
t hat down?
A No, | wunderstand that. | put the schedul e
together so I'mfamliar with it.

Q Okay. Was that right?
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A That's correct.

Q And that would |eave 56 mllion, right?

A Correct.

Q Okay. Wuld you agree that the '05
di vi dend adj usted PA amount, and this is down in the
bottom table just so you're aware, of 14,026,200 was
cal cul ated as follows: nultiply the 56 mllion of
remai ning ' 05 dividends by the ratio which numerator
is the purchase ac